
Agenda 
SUTTER COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION 

Regular Meeting 
Wednesday, April 8, 2020 - 5:30 p.m. 

Sutter County Superintendent of Schools Office 
970 Klamath Lane – Board Room 

Yuba City, CA  95993 
 

 
A full Board packet is available for review at the Sutter County Superintendent of 
Schools Office Reception Desk, 970 Klamath Lane, Yuba City, CA  (8:00 a.m. – 5:00 
p.m., Monday through Friday – excluding legal holidays) and the Sutter County 
Superintendent of Schools’ website at www.sutter.k12.ca.us. 
 
5:30 p.m. 1.0 Call to Order 
 
  2.0 Pledge of Allegiance 
 
  3.0 Roll Call of Members: 
 
   Ron Turner, President 
   June McJunkin, Vice President 
   Karm Bains, Member 
   Victoria Lachance, Member 
   Jim Richmond, Member 
 
  4.0 Items of Public Interest to Come to the Attention of the Board 
 

Members of the public are given an opportunity to address the 
Board regarding items not listed on the agenda.  The California 
Government Code, Section 54954.3(a) states, “…….no action shall be 
taken on any item not appearing on the agenda unless the action is 
otherwise authorized by subdivision (b) of Section 54954.2. 
 

  5.0 Approve Minutes of the March 11, 2020, Regular Meeting    
   [Action Item] 

 
   The minutes of the March 11, 2020, Regular Meeting of the   
   Sutter County Board of Education are presented for approval. 
              
      6.0 Business Services Report 

 6.1 Monthly Financial Report – March 2020 – Nic Hoogeveen   
 6.2 Investment Statement – February 2020 – Ron Sherrod  
 
7.0 Close Fund 74 (NVSIG Investment Fund) at the Auditor-Treasurer  
 Ron Sherrod – [Action Item] 
 

http://www.sutter.k12.ca.us/


Sutter County Board of Education Agenda 
Page 2 of 2  
April 8, 2020 
 

 Close Fund 74 (NVSIG Investment Fund) at the Auditor- 
Treasurer’s Office. 

  
         8.0 Items from the Superintendent/Board       

  9.0 Adjournment 
 

  
 
 
In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, for those requiring special assistance to 
access the Board Meeting room, to access written documents being discussed at the Board Meeting, 
or to otherwise participate at Board Meetings, please contact the Superintendent’s Office at 530-
822-2900 for assistance.  Notification at least 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the 
Superintendent’s Office to make reasonable arrangements to ensure accessibility to the Board 
Meeting and to provide any required accommodations, auxiliary aids or services. 
 
All Open Session Agenda related documents, including materials distributed less than 72 hours 
prior to the scheduled meeting, are available to the public for viewing at the Sutter County 
Superintendent of Schools Office located at 970 Klamath Lane, Yuba City, CA  95993. 



          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.   5.0  
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM:  Approve Minutes March 11, 2020, Regular Board Meeting  
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:          April 8, 2020       
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
      Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
  Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
  Maggie Nicoletti    
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
  Tom Reusser ____________ 
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
  Tom Reusser   
 
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
 
The Minutes of the March 11, 2020, Regular Meeting are presented for approval. 
 
 
 



Unapproved     
SUTTER COUNTY BOARD OF EDUCATION MINUTES 

Regular Meeting 
March 11, 2020 

1.0  Call to Order 
A regular meeting of the Sutter County Board of Education was called to 
order by President Turner, 5:31 p.m., March 11, 2020, at the Sutter 
County Superintendent of Schools Office, 970 Klamath Lane, Yuba City, 
California. 

  
2.0 Pledge of Allegiance 
 The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Trustee Richmond.  
 
3.0 Roll call of Members 
  Ron Turner, President – Present  
 June McJunkin, Vice President – Present  
 Karm Bains, Member – Present 
 Victoria Lachance, Member – Present  
 Jim Richmond, Member – Present 
  
 Tom Reusser, Ex-officio Secretary – Present 
 

Staff Members Present: Ron Sherrod, Nic Hoogeveen, Kristi Johnson, 
Brian Gault, Joe Hendrix and Maggie Nicoletti 

   
4.0 Items of Public Interest to come to the attention of the Board 
 None. 
 
5.0 Approve Minutes of the February 12, 2020, Regular Meeting   
 A motion was made to approve the minutes of the February 12, 2020, 

regular meeting of the Sutter County Board of Education.  
 

  Motion: Jim Richmond  Seconded: Victoria Lachance 
 Action:  Motion Carried 
 Ayes:   4 (McJunkin, Turner, Richmond and Lachance)  
 Noes:  0  
 Absent:   0    Abstain: 1 (Bains) 
   
6.0 Change Date of November 11, 2020, Board Meeting    
 Motion made to change the date of the November 11, 2020 Board Meeting 
 to November 10, 2020, 5:30 p.m., Board Room. 
 
  Motion: June McJunkin  Seconded: Karm Bains 
 Action:  Motion Carried 
 Ayes:   5 (McJunkin, Turner, Richmond, Bains and Lachance)  
 Noes:  0  
 Absent:   0     Abstain: 0   
  
7.0    Approve the 2019-2020 Second Interim Report 
         Nic reviewed the Second Interim Report for 2019-2020 with the Board 
 and stated this is normal reporting required by CDE. The report is as of  



 

Sutter County Board of Education Minutes 
Page 2 of 4 
March 11, 2020 
 

 January 31, 2020.  Nic reviewed the page titled Summary Report of  
 Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance (Unrestricted and  
 Restricted Combined).  The ROP Food Truck is showing $12,000 in food  
 expenses and it is reflected in the budget. On the whole, we are in good  
 shape and we will certify with a positive balance. Per Nic, the Multi-year 
 Projection (MYP) will be included in next year’s report.   
      
 A motion was made to approve the 2019-2020 Second Interim Report. 
    
  Motion: Karm Bains   Seconded: June McJunkin 
 Action:  Motion Carried 
 Ayes:   5 (McJunkin, Turner, Richmond, Bains and Lachance)  
 Noes:  0  
 Absent:   0     Abstain: 0 
 
8.0    Business Services Report 
 8.1    Sutter County Investment Statement – January 2020 
                  Ron reviewed the January 2020 Investment Statement with the  
                  Board.  We are below the 2% barrier at 1.97%.  
           8.2  Surplus Inventory 
                 Ron reviewed the Surplus Inventory List with the Board. The list is  
 longer than it typically is; we are working on improving the 
 process of tracking surplus property.  A lot of the surplus inventory 
 list includes old electronic equipment. One item on the Surplus  
 Inventory List showed up so it will be taken off the list; it was asset 
 Tag 004685.   
          8.3  Donations   
 Sutter Yuba Board of Realtors donated $750.00 to be used for the 
 Sutter County Spelling Bee and a $30.00 donation was received from 
 Andrew Milani to be used towards a Shady Creek summer camp 
 scholarship. 
   
9.0 Local Control and Accountability Plan (LCAP) Update 
  Brian Gault and Kristi Johnson presented a PowerPoint to the Board  
  regarding changes to the LCAP template. There is a new template and they 
  are using it as a valuable tool for a new planning process.  The new LCAP 
  is a three year plan that describes the goals, actions, services and   
  expenditures to support positive student outcomes that address state and 
  local priorities. 
   
10.0 The following Board Bylaw is being presented for a first reading:  

• Board Bylaw 9324 – Minutes and Recordings  
  After reading and reviewing Board Bylaw 9324, a motion was made to  
  approve Board Bylaw 9324 after one reading.  This Board Bylaw  
  outlines exactly our Minutes and Recordings procedures and this  



 

Sutter County Board of Education Minutes 
Page 3 of 4 
March 11, 2020 
 

  Board Bylaw had not been previously approved so there were no  
  revisions. 
 
              Motion: Karm Bains   Seconded: June McJunkin 
 Action: Motion Carried 
  Ayes: 5 (McJunkin, Turner, Richmond, Bains and Lachance)  
  Noes: 0  
  Absent: 0     Abstain: 0 
 

 
11.0 Items from the Superintendent/Board 
  Tom asked Joe to give an update on the Pathways Charter Academy (PCA).  
  We are on the agenda for the CDE Board Meeting tomorrow as a consent  
  agenda item.  At the meeting today; there were no oppositions presented.  
  There were three other charter schools on the agenda today.  Joe   
  will attend the second meeting tomorrow and if there is no opposition,  
  PCA will receive a number from CDE. 
  Joe stated that all Sutter County School Districts were invited to tour the 
  charter facility that we are using as a model for PCA.  Two of the small  
  school districts stated they would go and, as it turned out, no body  
  showed.  Joe planned on meeting with the attendees after the tour, but  
  obviously it was not necessary.  Joe is working with Brian, Kristi and  
  John Kovach on curriculum to determine what is best for this charter  
  school.  He wants to extend an invitation to the districts to give   
  input on the curriculum as well.  We will be applying for PERS/STRS for  
  staff at PCA. 
  Tom stated there was a scare at Shady Creek; it started with one student 
  having a fever and then went to twenty students; the nurse even got a  
  fever.  No other problems after that. 
  Tom stated that coronavirus has been a very heavy topic the last two  
  weeks and Tom has been very involved.  Emails started Saturday night to 
  invite county superintendents to meet with Governor Newsome on   
  Monday, March 9th.  
  According to the California Department of Public Health, there are four  
  scenarios that should be considered by each school prior to a school  
  closure.  Administrators have met with Dr. Rice and Dr. Luu, Bi-County  
  Health Officers, regarding the coronavirus (COVID-19). This is a form of  
  the common cold. 
  The World Health Organization announced this morning that COVID-19 is 
  a pandemic.  
  Last week, SCSOS was notified that we received a two million CTE/ROP  
  grant; this is a tri-county grant. 
  Vicky stated that there are six essential roles in LCAP implementation and 
  development for Board Members. She received this information at the  
  CSBA LCAP training she recently attended and she distributed the   
  information to the Board Members. 



 

Sutter County Board of Education Minutes 
Page 4 of 4 
March 11, 2020 
 

 
12.0  Adjournment   
  A motion was made to adjourn the meeting at 6:24 p.m. 
 
  Motion: June McJunkin  Seconded: Victoria Lachance 
 Action:  Motion Carried 
 Ayes:   5 (Bains, McJunkin, Turner, Richmond and Lachance)  
 Noes:  0  
 Absent:   0    Abstain: 0 
   
 
           



          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.   6.1  
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM:  Business Services Report 
                                        
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:    April 8, 2020                
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
      Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
  X  Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
 Nic Hoogeveen  
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
   Nic Hoogeveen   
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
   Nic Hoogeveen  
 
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
 The monthly financial report for March will be reviewed. 
 
 
 
 



Description Account Original Operating Actuals to Projected Difference 2019-20 %

Codes Budget Budget Date Yr Totals (Col D - B) Actuals

as a %

7/1/19 1/31/20 3/15/20 3/15/20 of Budget

(A) (B) (C) (D)  (E)

A.  Revenues

    1) Local Control Funding Formula 8010-8099 9,958,960$      10,013,169$    4,813,754$    10,013,169$  -                   A 48.1%

    2) Federal Revenues 8100-8299 3,800,629$      4,052,000$      1,106,798$    4,052,000$    -                   B 27.3%

    3) Other State Revenues 8300-8599 8,548,686$      11,694,679$    5,040,655$    11,694,679$  -                   C 43.1%

    4) Other Local Revenues 8600-8799 14,408,563$    14,400,750$    966,926$       14,400,750$  -                   D 6.7%

.

       TOTAL REVENUES 36,716,838$    40,160,598$    11,928,133$  40,160,598$  -$                 29.7%

B.  Expenditures

    1. Certificated Salaries 1000-1999 8,381,028$      9,165,082$      4,324,654$    9,165,082$    -                   E 47.2%

    2. Classified Salaries 2000-2999 11,671,820$    11,757,614$    5,157,812$    11,757,614$  -                   F 43.9%

    3. Employee Benefits 3000-3999 7,531,320$      8,185,702$      3,051,332$    8,185,702$    -                   G 37.3%

    4. Books and Supplies 4000-4999 841,597$         1,099,156$      336,418$       1,100,477$    1,321               H 30.6%

    5. Services, Other Operation 5000-5999 4,555,559$      6,410,742$      2,419,942$    6,424,645$    13,903             I 37.7%

    6. Capital Outlay 6000-6999 481,710$         614,835$         81,663$         632,951$       18,116             J 13.3%

    7. Other Outgo 7100-7299 287,624$         800,805$         424,928$       800,805$       -                   K 53.1%

    8. Direct Support/Indirect 7300-7399 (77,470)$          (81,255)$         (32,100)$       (81,255)$       -                   L 39.5%

    9. Debt Service 7400-7499 -$                 -$                -$              -$              -                   M 0.0%

 

       TOTAL EXPENDITURES 33,673,188$    37,952,681$    15,764,649$  37,986,021$  33,340             41.5%

Excess ( Deficiency) of Revenues

Over Expenditures Before Other

Financing Sources and Uses 

(A5-B9)

D. Other Financing Sources/Uses

    1. Transfers In 8910-8979 54,234$           143,826$         -$              146,676$       2,850               N 0.0%

    2. Transfer Out 7610-7629 767,665$         816,985$         -$              816,985$       -                   O 0.0%

    3. Contributions 8980-8999 -$                 -$                -$              -$              -                   P 0.0%

       Total, Other Fin Sources/Uses (713,431)$        (673,159)$       -$              (670,309)$     2,850$             0.0%

E. Net Change to Fund Balance 2,330,219$       1,534,758$       (3,836,516)$    1,504,268$     (30,490)$           

F. Fund Balance (Fund 01 only)

    1. Beginning Balance 9,586,727$      9,586,727$      9,586,727$    9,586,727$    -                   

    2. Adjustments/Restatements -$                 -$                -$              -$              

       Ending Balance 11,916,946$     11,121,485$     5,750,211$     11,090,995$   (30,490)$           

G. Components of Ending Fund Balance

    Designated Amounts 9711-9730 10,000$           10,000$          10,000$         -$                 

    Legally Restricted 9740-9760 3,480,197$      2,577,831$      3,480,197$    -$                 

    Assigned 9780 8,935,426$      8,825,941$      5,660,647$    -$                 

    Restricted Economic Uncertainty 9789 1,722,043$      1,938,433$      1,940,150$    -$                 

    Unassigned/Unappropriated 9790 -$                 -$                -$              -$                 

Summary Report of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balance

(Unrestricted and Restricted Combined)

MARCH REPORT

-176.4%(33,340)$          2,174,577$    (3,836,516)$   2,207,917$      3,043,650$      

02/01/20-03/15/20



Explanation of Differences

Net Change in Current Year Budget March Board Report

02/01/2020-03/15/2020

Amount Explanation of Differences

A Local Control Funding Formula (8010-8099)

  -$                        

B Federal Revenues (8100-8299)

-$                        

C Other State Revenues (8300-8599)

-$                        

D Other Local Revenues (8600-8799)

-$                        

E Certificated Salaries (1000-1999)

-$                        

F Classified Salaries (2000-2999)

-$                        

G Employee Benefits  (3000-3999)

-$                        

H Books and Supplies  (4000-4999)

County Office 3,189$                Net Increase to budget for Automated External Defibrillator machines

One Stop (1,060)$              Decrease budget to match actuals

Student Support and Outreach (SSO) 1,800$                Increase budget for technology purchase

Tri County Induction Program (TCIP) (2,000)$              
Move budget to Services and Other Operations for travel and conference 

expenditures

Various departments (608)$                 Miscellaneous Adjustments

1,321$                

I Services, Other Operations (5000-5999)

County Office 12,035$              Increase budget for fire alarm security at Feather River Academy

One Stop 1,060$                Increase budget to match actuals

Student Support and Outreach (SSO) (1,800)$              Move budget to Books and Supplies for technology purchase

Tri County Induction Program (TCIP) 2,000$                Increase budget for travel and conference expenditures

Various departments 608$                   Miscellaneous adjustments

13,903$              

J Capital Outlay (6000-6999)

County Office 18,116$              
Increase budget for Human Resources remodel, HVAC re-zoning and Shady 

Creek copier

18,116$              

K Other Outgo (7100 - 7299)

-$                        

L Direct Support / Indirect (7300-7399)

-$                        



Explanation of Differences

Net Change in Current Year Budget March Board Report

02/01/2020-03/15/2020

Amount Explanation of Differences

M Debt Services (7400 - 7499)

Various departments

-$                        

N Transfers In (8910-8979)

County Office 2,850$                Increase budget for Shady Creek copier

2,850$                

O Transfers Out (7610-7629)

-$                        

P Contributions (8980-8999)

-$                        

Net Change in Current Year Budget (30,490)$            



          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.   6.2  
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM:  Investment Statements 
                                        
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:   April 8, 2020            
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
      Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
 X  Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
 Ron Sherrod  
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
   Ron Sherrod  
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
  Ron Sherrod   
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION: 
 
The Investment Statement as of February 29, 2020 from the County Treasurer will be  
presented.  
  
 
 
 
 



















          
                                                                                    Agenda Item No.   7.0  
  
 
BOARD AGENDA ITEM: Close Fund 74 (NVSIG Investment Fund)  
                                        
 
 
BOARD MEETING DATE:   04/08/2020                
 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBMITTED FOR: 
 
    X  Action  
 
      Reports/Presentation 
 
  Information 
 
  Public Hearing 
 
  Other (specify) 
  

 
PREPARED BY: 
 
Paramjeet Kaur  
 
SUBMITTED BY: 
 
 Paramjeet Kaur  
 
PRESENTING TO BOARD: 
 
 Ron Sherrod 
 

  
BACKGROUND AND SUMMARY INFORMATION:  
 
To close Fund 74 (NVSIG Investment Fund) at the Auditor- Treasurer. 
  
 
 
 
 


	1.0 Agenda 4-8-20
	2.0 AI Minutes
	2.1 Minutes - March 11 2020
	3.0 AI Board Report
	3.1 March Board Report
	3.2 AI Investment Report
	3.2 Investment Report
	4.0 AI Fund 74

